
 
 

Please ask for: 

Linda Coote 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

linda.coote@gosport.gov.uk 
 

26 October 2021 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Community Board 
DATE: 3 November 2021 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Mayor, Councillor Hook (ex-Officio) 
Chairman of the Policy and Organisation Board, Councillor Burgess (ex-Officio) 

 
Councillor Raffaelli (Chairman) 

  
 

Councillor Bateman 
Councillor Beavis 
Councillor Blackman 
Councillor Carter 
Councillor Earle 
Councillor Mrs Furlong 
 

Councillor Hammond 
Councillor Hutchison 
Councillor Miss Kelly 
Councillor Meenaghan 
Councillor Westerby 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Community Board 
3 November 2021 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of Interest   

 All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.   
 

 

3.   Minutes of the previous meeting of the Community Board held 
on 8 September 2021 (Pages 5 - 8) 

 

4.   Deputations  - Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 1st November 2021.  The 
total time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes). 
 

 

5.   Public Questions - Standing Order 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
1st November 2021). 
 

 

6.   Commemorative Bench Seat Policy (Pages 9 - 26)  

 To seek approval for the adoption of the Commemorative Bench 
Seat Policy. 
 
The overall objective of the policy is to adopt a consistent approach 
to the management of the commemorative bench seats in the 
borough and introduce a structured maintenance process funded 
through ongoing lease periods. 
 

 

7.   Beach Road Car Park (Pages 27 - 68)  

 To update the Board on the progress of the predetermined actions 
and the Community Trigger Action Plan for Beach Road Car Park. 

 



Community Board 
3 November 2021 

 
 

To obtain Board approval for the aforementioned actions yet to be 
completed and facilitate their implementation. To obtain a strategic 
decision on the locking of the car park due to the serious 
consequences involved. 
 

8.   Any Other Items   



Community Board 
8 September 2021 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 8 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
 Councillor Burgess 
 
Councillors Raffaelli, Beavis, Earle, Mrs Furlong, Hutchison, Miss Kelly and Meenaghan 
 
 
89. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
There were none. 
 
90. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Kelly declared a personal interest in agenda item 7 due to her partner being an 
allotment tenant. 
 
91. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY BOARD HELD ON 

7 JULY  2021  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 7th July 2021 be signed as a true and 
correct record. 
 
92. DEPUTATIONS  - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
There were none 
 
93. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none 
 
94. THE ESTABLISHMENT OF NATURALISED FLOWER ZONES  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Streetscene seeking approval for a 
change in the mowing regime across approximately 70,000 m2 (5%) of amenity grass within 
the borough. To establish naturalised flower zones that will create a more attractive and 
diverse environment, increase biodiversity, reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve 
the health and wellbeing of the community. 
 
Members expressed their approval of the areas that had already been seeded. 
 
Members were advised that the areas shown in this report formed a trial, and could be 
extended to other areas if successful. Feedback will be welcomed along with suggestions of 
other potential sites. 
 
Officers advised that guidance would have to be sought from Natural England regarding 
seeding areas in Walpole Park due to the implications of seed matter finding its way into the 
lake. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Community Board 
8 September 2021 

 

2 

Members were reassured that the formal planting in areas such as Falkland Gardens would 
be preserved and that any area identified for the scheme would be chosen as a conscious 
decision and not just left to go wild. 
 
Members were pleased that the scheme would incur no additional costs. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Board approved the proposed maintenance changes from managed 
amenity grass to naturalised flower zones at the locations in Appendix A. 
 
95. ALLOTMENT STRATEGY  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Streetscene seeking approval for the 
adoption of the Allotment Strategy and Action Plan for Council provided allotment sites. 
 
 
Members congratulated the Officers on a comprehensive report and thanked Mr Jim More 
and the members of the Allotment Stakeholders Group for their input. 
 
Members were happy to see that charity groups such as Loud & Proud and Firstlight Trust 
were able to use allotment sites as community gardens and all agreed the benefits of 
working on an allotment. 
 
Officers advised that the current Wardens were lifetime members, currently relaxed due to 
the insurance issues regarding the pandemic. Alternative arrangements were being 
considered including site representatives who would be engaged under the Councils 
volunteer policy with a job description. In addition, it was hoped that there could be a daily 
on site presence through the DSO, dealing with issues of repair and maintenance and to 
assist with plot clearance.  
 
Members were advised that part of the strategy was to make all sites statutory not 
temporary to help protect from future building. 
 
Officers advised that the terms of the tenancy agreements regarding non cultivation were 
going to be more strongly enforced. The Allotment Stakeholders Group (ASG) would be 
looking to introduce a new agreement that would revoke all existing versions. Tenants 
would be asked to sign up to the terms of the new agreement and would receive a period in 
which to correct any issues on their plot, before the termination process is triggered. 
Members supported this and wished for a firm stance to be taken with those who do not use 
the allotments appropriately. 
 
Members were advised that the ASG continued to look into providing toilet facilities on sites 
but costs of supply and maintenance could prove prohibitive. Compost toilets were part of 
that consideration. 
 
Officers advised that the Probation Service had been approached to assist in the clearing of 
plots for re- tenanting, but although keen to help, the current Covid situation meant a delay 
in starting. The only costs involved would be for the removal of the rubbish created. 
 
Members were advised that an education programme needs to continue in regard to non 
recyclable items brought onto sites and although the twice yearly skips will continue for the 
present a longer term aim will be to enforce tenants removing their own rubbish.  The green 

Page 6



Community Board 
8 September 2021 

 

3 

bag scheme is no longer an option but communal compost areas on each site might help 
and burning is still allowed.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, the Head of Streetscene advised that he hoped to be 
able to deal with potholes in allotment roads in house. 
 
Officers agreed to continue sending reminders to tenants regarding the locking of gates and 
would ensure that damage or issues with the locks would be resolved as soon as a report is 
received. 
 
The Head of Streetscene advised that a survey of perimeter fences would be required in 
order to determine where clearing of brambles etc would be appropriate and where it might 
cause damage to the fence or where it is assisting with the prevention of trespassers. He 
advised that the fence is old and expensive to replace. 
 
Members agreed that the move to split 10 rod plots to 5 rod plots was the correct one. 
Officers advised that most people favoured a 5 rod plot and there were now very few 10 rod 
plots. 
 
 
 
RESOLVED: That the Board approved the Allotment Strategy 2021-2024 and agreed in 
principle to the delivery of the action plan. 
 
 
96. GOSPORT NEW CEMETERY  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Streetscene updating the Board on the 
progress of the New Cemetery project, approve the recommendations of the Cenetery Task 
and Finish Group and proceed with the reappointment of Cemetery Development Services 
(CDS) as technical consultants for this scheme which would culminate in the submission of 
a planning application for the scheme. 
 
Members were advised that there was less than five years capacity in the existing 
cemeteries and no time to re-start the process 
 
RESOLVED: That the Board: 
 

i) Noted the progress of the Gosport New Cemetery project. 
 

ii) Approved in principle the recommendations of the working group for the proposed new 
cemetery site. 

 
 

iii) Approved that Officers should now proceed with the reappointment of Cemetery 
Development Services (CDS) as technical consultatnts for the scheme culminating in the 
preparation of a detailed planning application for the scheme 
 

iv) Approved the request for an exemption to the Contract Procedure Rules (CPR) (Section 3) 
to enable the direct appointment of CDS as technical design and cost advisors for this 
scheme through to the planning application phase at a cost of £35,150. 

 

Page 7



Community Board 
8 September 2021 

 

4 

97. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 6.38 pm 

 
 

Page 8



 

Board/Committee: Community Board 

Date of meeting: Wednesday 3rd November 2021 

Title: Commemorative Bench Seat Policy 

Author: Head of Streetscene 

Status: FOR DECISION 

 

Purpose 

To seek approval for the adoption of the Commemorative Bench Seat Policy. 

The overall objective of the policy is to adopt a consistent approach to the 
management of the commemorative bench seats in the Borough and introduce a 
structured maintenance process funded through ongoing agreement periods. 

Recommendation 

That the Board approves the Commemorative Bench Seat Policy (appended to 
this report) and provides delegated authority to the Head of Streetscene to:- 

I. Cease the provision of bench seats where sites are deemed exhausted 
or unsuitable. 

II. Determine fees based on supply, installation and maintenance costs 
each financial year. 

III. Agree that the provision of income for maintenance purposes is 
transferred on an annual basis. 

IV. Manage the service provision in accordance with the policy. 

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 Gosport Borough Council (GBC) provides the opportunity for customers to 
fund the supply and installation of commemorative bench seats along 
Gosport’s seafront and within parks and open spaces. 
 

1.2 The Council recognises the importance for individuals and/or organisations 
to commemorate loved ones by funding a commemorative bench seat 
thereby providing a valuable asset for the enjoyment of visitors and 
residents of Gosport alike. 
 

1.3 The Council manages the demand for commemorative bench seats by 
determining the number of commemorative bench seats that can be 
accommodated along the seafronts and within the parks and open spaces, 
taking uniformity, aesthetic and consistency into account with the 
introduction of waiting lists where appropriate. 
 

1.4 The management and administration of commemorative bench seat 
provision along seafront locations is governed by previously determined 
spaces. Allocated spaces have been evenly spaced in a consistent manner 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



so as not to detract from the surroundings or prime purpose of the seafront 
ensuring the area remains aesthetically pleasing. On completion of all 
those allocated spaces having been adopted the relevant waiting list is 
subsequently closed. 

1.5 Requests for commemorative bench seats within the Borough’s parks and 
open spaces has proven less popular and is managed and administered 
without the need for the introduction of waiting lists. 
 

2.0 Report 
 

2.1 The management and administration of commemorative bench seats is 
delivered by Streetscene. 
 

2.2 Due to the current level of demand for commemorative bench seats 
Streetscene have undertaken a review of the service, which highlighted the 
need for a more stringent procedure with the amount of available space 
being a premium particularly along seafront locations. 
 

2.3 The introduction of a 10 year agreement period will allow the Council to 
maintain up to date records for applicants and provide a maintenance 
schedule. The cessation of any agreement period will provide new 
applicants the opportunity to use a bench at a location that was previously 
deemed full. 
 

2.4 A 10 year period was agreed as being comparable with other Local 
Authorities, it further allows for a suitable period of time to retain 
communication with applicants whilst allowing them many years to 
commemorate their loved one. 
 

2.5 In agreement with the Friends of Stokes Bay group the review has 
highlighted that Stokes Bay can no longer currently facilitate further new 
commemorative bench seats and that the Council would cease offering 
benches at this location.  
 
New commemorative bench seats requested for Stokes Bay will require 
any prior agreement period to have expired before the removal and 
replacement of the existing commemorative bench seat. As per appended 
policy ref items 4 and 5. 
 

2.6 The maintenance fee charged will cover the on-going maintenance and 
provide an additional income that will supplement the existing budget held 
for the annual maintenance of the Borough’s bench seat stock. 
 

3.0 Risk Assessment 
 

3.1 The policy provides a clear, consistent approach for Gosport through the 
effective management and delivery of the service.  
 

3.2 The maintenance income enables the Council to undertake a maintenance 
regime to supplement the existing level of provision. 

Page 10



  
4.0 Conclusion 

 
4.1 The adoption of the Commemorative Bench Seat Policy demonstrates that 

GBC is committed to providing the opportunity for individuals to 
commemorate their loved ones by funding a commemorative bench seat 
for the enjoyment of residents and visitors of Gosport alike.  
 

 

Financial Services comments: No immediate financial implications as GBC look 
to use the Streetscene Grounds Maintenance 
Team for maintenance and minor improvements 
with the existing budgets together with the 
maintenance contribution. 

Legal Services comments: No comment 

Equality and Diversity: An attached IIA has been completed on the 
policy to ensure a fair and consistent approach. 
 

Climate Change implications: All new and replacement commemorative bench 
seats are to be made of recycled material. 

Crime and Disorder: None for the purpose of this report 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

To be delivered by Streetscene 

Corporate Plan: The Council’s aim through the delivery of this 
policy is to improve the quality of service for 
residents and visitors to Gosport along with 
providing a greener, safer and sustainable future 
in the provision of commemorative bench seats 

Risk Assessment:  
As per 3 

Background Papers: Commemorative Bench Seat Policy 
 

Appendices: None 
 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Dave Stubington – Cemetery & Arboricultural 
Officer 
Sarah Glassock – Assistant Cemetery & 
Arboricultural Officer 
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Commemorative Bench Seat Policy 2021          

Page | 1  
 

Summary: 
 
This policy provides a clear and concise definition of the management processes 
for the provision of Commemorative Bench Seats and aims to: 
 

 ensure consistency that all customers are treated equally and fairly 
 

 set out a clear agreement period to assist in the ongoing maintenance and 
management of commemorative bench seats 

 

 address how to resolve any issues that may arise  
 

 

Last Review Date October 2021 

Next Review Date October 2024 

Approval  

Policy Owner Streetscene 

Policy Author 
Dave Stubington – Cemetery & Arboricultural Officer 
Sarah Glassock – Assistant Cemetery & Arboricultural 
Officer 

Advice & Guidance Please contact Streetscene 

Location 
Gosport Borough Council Website 
 

Scope 

This policy covers the procedures and management of the 
provision of commemorative bench seats along the 
seafront and within parks and open spaces in the 
Borough. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 13



Commemorative Bench Seat Policy 2021          

Page | 2  
 

 

Contents: 

 

Subject: Page: 

1.   Introduction 3 

2.   Objectives 3 

3.   Locations 3 

4.   New Commemorative Bench Seats 4 

5.   Existing Commemorative Bench Seats 5 

6.   Charities & Service Organisations 5 

7.   Plaques & Memorabilia 5 

8.   Maintenance 6 

9.   Process 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gosport Borough Council is committed to equal opportunities for all. 

If you need this document in large print, on CD, in Braille or in another 

language, please ask. 

Page 14



Commemorative Bench Seat Policy 2021          

Page | 3  
 

1. Introduction 
  
1.1 Gosport Borough Council supports the needs and principles of allowing 

commemorative bench seats along its seafront and within its parks and 
open spaces. The Council is mindful that these facilities are enjoyed by a 
wide range of people. Therefore the Council shall ensure that the service is 
managed and regulated for the mutual benefit of all. 

  
1.2 The policy will be reviewed every three years and revised as necessary to 

meet changing circumstances. 
  
2. Objectives 
  
2.1 The Council is seeking to ensure a clear, measurable and sympathetic 

approach to the management of its assets within parks, open spaces and 
seafront. 

  
2.2 The policy will ensure that commemorative bench seats have a common 

appearance, style and size which are appropriate for that location. 
  
2.3 The policy will establish responsibility for maintenance, repair and 

replacement. 
  
3. Locations 
  
3.1 Commemorative bench seats within the Borough’s parks, open spaces and 

seafront shall be positioned to maximise the benefit and development of the 
park or open space and the Council will attempt to accommodate the wishes 
of the applicant.  

  
3.2 The Council will limit the number of commemorative bench seats in 

particular areas so that they shall not detract from the prime purpose of the 
park, open space or seafront and ensure that the area remains aesthetically 
pleasing.  

  
3.3 The size and location of the park, open space or seafront will determine the 

number of commemorative bench seats that may be permitted. 
  
3.4 Commemorative bench seats situated along the seafront at Stokes Bay and 

Lee-on-the-Solent are in popular demand, therefore seats in these locations 
will be limited and evenly spaced in a consistent manner so as not to detract 
from the surroundings. 

  
3.5 Once a site reaches the maximum capacity any applicable waiting lists will 

be closed. The Council reserves the right to refuse applications on this 
basis. 

  

Page 15



Commemorative Bench Seat Policy 2021          

Page | 4  
 

3.6 The Council shall specify the type of seat to be installed to ensure it is in 
keeping with the intended location. 

  
3.7 The Council reserves the right to relocate a commemorative bench seat, 

within the same site where possible, should the original position become 
unsuitable in the future. 

  
3.8 Under no circumstances will any installation of a commemorative bench 

seat by a third party be permitted. If it is found that a commemorative bench 
seat has been installed by anyone other than the Council, the bench will be 
removed without notice and without guarantee of safe return. 

  
4. New Commemorative Bench Seats 
  
4.1 All commemorative bench seats are subject to a 10 year agreement 

commencing from the date of installation and can be renewed after this 
period if the applicant wishes. The fee covers the purchase, delivery and 
installation of the seat and plaque and a contribution towards the ongoing 
repair and maintenance for the 10 year period. 

  
4.2 The Council will only accept instruction from the original applicant or will 

require written permission from them allowing someone to act on their 
behalf or to transfer the ownership. 

  
4.3 At the end of the initial 10 year period the Council will endeavour to contact 

the applicant to offer them the opportunity to renew the agreement for a 
further 5 year period (renewed every 5 years thereafter). A renewal fee will 
be applicable.  

  
4.4 The applicant may contact the Council no earlier than one year prior to the 

end of the agreement period to extend the agreement for a period of 5 
additional years. 

  
4.5 Where the agreement is not renewed the plaque will be removed and 

returned to the applicant. The bench, if still in a good, safe condition, will 
then be made available for others to use. 

  
4.6 The applicant should ensure that the Council is in possession of current 

contact details. This information will be retained in accordance with the 
Council's retention policy and will not be kept for longer than necessary. 

  
4.7 In the event the Council are unable to contact the applicant after the 10 year 

agreement period the Council shall remove the plaque and store for a 
period of 12 months before disposal. The bench, if still in a good, safe 
condition, will then be made available for others to use. 

  
4.8 The Council reserves the right to remove any commemorative bench seat 

Page 16



Commemorative Bench Seat Policy 2021          

Page | 5  
 

which in its opinion is damaged or beyond economic repair and will 
endeavour to notify the applicant. 

  
5. Existing Commemorative Bench Seats 
  
5.1 For commemorative bench seats installed prior to January 2022, where the 

Council are in possession of current contact details, the original applicant 
will be contacted and advised that a further 10 year agreement will apply at 
no cost. 

  
5.2 Where the Council are not in possession of current contact details officers 

will make every effort to identify and contact the original applicant within the 
10 year agreement period by placing notices on commemorative bench 
seats and various media outlets. In the event the Council are unable to 
contact the applicant after the 10 year agreement period item 4.7 will apply. 

  
5.3 On the expiry of the initial 10 year period items 4.3 to 4.8 will apply. 
  
6. Charities & Service Organisations 
  
6.1 Existing commemorative bench seats arranged and installed through 

charities and service organisations in agreement with the Council will be 
exempt from the agreement period.  

  
7. Plaques & Memorabilia 
  
7.1 Only plaques authorised, purchased and installed by the Council will be 

permitted. Unauthorised plaques will be removed with immediate effect 
without notice. 

  
7.2 Memorial plaques shall be stainless steel measuring 150mm x 50mm 

affixed forward facing to the centre of the upper most slat. 
  
7.3 The final wording on the plaque shall be approved by the Council to ensure 

it is appropriate and inoffensive. The Council reserves the right to refuse an 
inscription that could be deemed offensive. 

  
7.4 The Council cannot accept responsibility for an incorrect inscription as a 

result of an incorrectly approved proof.  
  
7.5 Additional plaques shall be authorised, purchased and installed by the 

Council and affixed in a symmetrical manner. Placement of additional 
plaques will not extend the agreement period and must be arranged by or in 
memory of the original applicant. 

  
7.6 No additional items such as flowers, wreaths, vases, ornaments, pictures or 

other mementos shall be permitted on or around the bench and will 

Page 17



Commemorative Bench Seat Policy 2021          

Page | 6  
 

removed with immediate effect without notice. 
  
8. Maintenance 
  
8.1 In the event a new commemorative bench seat becomes unserviceable 

within the first 10 year period through general wear and tear the Council will 
repair or replace as appropriate. 

  
8.2 The Council accepts no replacement liability for the plaque or the 

commemorative bench seat at the end of its useful life (10 years). 
  
8.3 Where a plaque or commemorative bench seat becomes damaged beyond 

economical repair for any reason other than general wear and tear such as 
vandalism, third party damage, etc, the Council reserves the right to remove 
the bench and not provide a replacement. 

  
8.4 Where a commemorative bench seat remains serviceable and there is a 

request to address cosmetic damage the applicant will be liable for any 
costs incurred. 

  
8.5 The Council will undertake an annual condition survey of all commemorative 

bench seats within the Borough, carry out or programme any routine 
maintenance and repairs that may be required with a view to prolonging the 
serviceable life of the bench. 

  
8.6 Maintenance and repairs will be undertaken by the Council. No 

unauthorised maintenance or repairs shall be undertaken by third parties. 
  
9. Process 
  
9.1 Customers must complete a Commemorative Bench Seat Application Form 

provided by Streetscene. 
  
9.2 On receipt of the application form the customer may be placed on a waiting 

list should this apply for their chosen location, otherwise the Officer shall 
contact the applicant to agree on the location of the commemorative bench 
seat and arrange for the purchase and installation. 

  
9.3 It can take up to 12 weeks for a bench and plaque to be delivered and 

installed. 
  
9.4 Payment is required in full. 
  
9.5 The Council will not grant applications for commemorative bench seats in 

memory of pets.  
  
 

Page 18



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

1 
 

Gosport Borough Council  

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 

Completion Instructions for IIA Leads:  

Use this IIA during development to initially assess the likely impact, on both customers and staff, of a proposed new policy, 

strategy, function or service or a proposed change to an existing one. This IIA aims to provide an early warning of any potential 

issues that could adversely impact our customers or staff or result in costly errors in terms of financial or reputational management. 

Evaluating the proposed changes against our key considerations regarding equality & diversity and climate change allows us to 

modify or mitigate any adverse impacts before implementation. It also demonstrates transparency in the Council’s decision making. 

It is a working document with named Subject Expert Officers (SEOs) who can support you - as the IIA Lead, through this process. 

Please do ask the SEOs for advice about potential impacts. 

Impacts in the template are marked: +ve (positive) -ve (negative) or neutral. Once completed the IIA must be signed off by your 

Head of Service and a summary copy attached to the Board or Committee report. Officers have a Duty to ensure that 

Councillors/decision makers understand the impact of decisions before those decisions are made. 

 

Policy/Strategy/Function/ Project  New Existing  IIA Lead Contact Details Date 

Commemorative Bench Seat Policy New  Dave Stubington  Dave.stubington@gosport.gov.uk 04/10/2021 
 

 

What is the aim of this policy/strategy/function/project? What will it change ? 

 
The overall objective of the policy is to adopt a consistent approach to the management of the commemorative bench 
seats in the borough and introduce a structured maintenance process funded through ongoing lease periods. 
 
 

P
age 19

mailto:Dave.stubington@gosport.gov.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

2 
 

 

Has any consultation been undertaken on this proposed change?                                   yes           no 

If yes, summarise the methods used  and results of the consultation:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the following 
three aims: 
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
• advance equal opportunities between people from different groups 
• foster good relations between people from different groups.   

Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy, project or function has or will advance equal opportunities for each 
of the protected groups below. 

Please note: If this proposal means a change in the availability, degree of provision or access to a service, benefit or 
facility for any group of people, then this Equality &Diversity impact assessment must be completed to assess if this 
proposal could be deemed unlawfully discriminatory.  

SEO for support to complete this section- Mandy Baggaley, CPCS, x5695 mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk 

P
age 20

mailto:mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

3 
 

Protected Characteristic + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Age   X No differing impact 
Disability   X No differing impact 
Gender reassignment   X No differing impact 
Marriage and Civil Partnership   X No differing impact 
Pregnancy    X No differing impact 
Race (ethnicity,  nationality, colour)   X No differing impact 
Religion or Belief (and lack of belief)   X No differing impact 
Sex   X No differing impact 
Sexual Orientation   X No differing impact 

The Armed Forces Bill  places a new duty on public bodies to have due regard to ensure those who serve in the Armed Forces, whether 
Regular or Reserve, those who have served in the past, and their families, should face no disadvantage compared to other citizens in the 
provision of public and commercial services. Special consideration is appropriate in some cases, especially for those who have given most 
such as the injured and the bereaved. Please refer to these resources for more information about the needs and characteristics of the armed 
forces community and our commitment to the Covenant.  GBC Covenant Agreement 2020 Local AFC Profile, needs assessment, resources   

Section of the Armed Forces 
Community 

+ ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

All X   
An increase in opportunity to commemorate service 
members as the policy introduces a leasing period. 

     
     

Are there any other groups which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) by this item? If yes, identify below: 

     

     

     

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

   

   

P
age 21

file://///knuckles/department/strat_policy/Equalities%20-MB/Equality%20Impact%20Assessments/Integrated%20EIA%202021%20w%20CC/GBC%20Covenant%20Agreement%202020
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/gosportarmedforcescommunity


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

4 
 

    

B. CLIMATE CHANGE & ENVIRONMENT 

Consider how this change will have an impact with regard to 

 Greenhouse gas emissions 

 Ability to adapt to the impacts of climate change 

 Waste Management 

 Air Quality 

 Natural Environment 

SEOs for support to complete this section- Tim Pratt, CPCS, x5573    tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk 

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions from buildings 
Gas or electricity use and provision of 
renewable electricity, by GBC or others 

  X N/A 

Emissions from transport 
Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC or others 

  X 
N/A 

Emissions from agriculture 
and land use 

Creation or removal of carbon sinks in 
Gosport, and changes to food consumption 

  X 
N/A 

Embedded emissions 
Emissions from manufacturing goods and 
materials used by GBC or others 

  X 
N/A 

Climate Change 
Adaptation 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Vulnerability to storms 
Flood prevention and extent to which 
buildings, habitats and species would be 
affected by flooding and high winds 

  X N/A 

P
age 22

mailto:tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

5 
 

Vulnerability to heat waves 

Provision of shading, ventilation and 
insulation in buildings, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
heat 

  X N/A 

Vulnerability to drought 

Water use in buildings, agriculture, and 
industrial processes, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
drought 

  X N/A 

Vulnerability to food 
insecurity 

Opportunity for local food production   X N/A 

Waste Management Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Amount of waste 
generated 

Levels of consumption by GBC, households 
and businesses, and extent to which 
materials used are reusable 

  X N/A 

Proportion of waste 
recycled 

Recyclability of materials used by GBC, 
households and businesses, and provision 
of recycling services 

  X N/A 

Air Quality Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from transport 

Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC and others; impacts on 
congestion and amount of idling of more 
vehicles 

  X N/A 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from industrial processes 

Emissions from chemical processes   X N/A 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from other sources 

Domestic and other fires   X N/A 

Impact of key pollutants 
Rate at which pollutants are absorbed or 
dispersed 

  X N/A 

P
age 23



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

6 
 

Natural Environment Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 
Sustainability of public 
spaces 

Amount of vegetation and maintenance   X N/A 

Biodiversity and quality of 
habitats 

General impacts on habitats and direct 
impacts on species of concern 

  X N/A 

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

   

   

    

C. IIA SUMMARY 

Have any positive or negative impacts been identified in 
sections A and B? 

 

Subject + ive - ive Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity X  An increase in opportunity to commemorate service 
members as the policy introduces a leasing period. 

B. Climate Change & Environment   N/A 

Can any negative impacts be mitigated? 
 

Subject Yes No N/A Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity   N/A  

B. Climate Change & Environment   N/A  

Is further assessment in either subject area necessary to conclude this assessment? 

Subject Yes No If yes, timetable for completion 

A. Equality & Diversity  X  

B. Climate Change &Environment  X   

P
age 24



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

7 
 

D. IIA CONCLUSION 

     This IIA is complete. No further assessment is required if identified actions are undertaken. This summary can be 

included with Board or Committee reports. 

     This IIA identified further assessment should be undertaken in the identified areas before implementation of this 

proposed change. 

Signed by Head of Service: 

Date: 

 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Board/Committee: COMMUNITY BOARD  

Date of meeting: 03/11/2021 

Title: Beach Road Car Park 

Author: Head of StreetScene 

Status: FOR DECISION 

 

Purpose 

To update the Board on the progress of the prearranged actions and the Community 
Trigger Action Plan for Beach Road Car Park. To obtain Board approval for the 
aforementioned actions yet to be completed and facilitate their implementation. To 
obtain a strategic decision on the locking of the car park due to the serious 
consequences involved. 

Recommendations 

 The Board notes the details of the implementation of the Action Plan 
and additions to the car park. 

 The Board approves the completion of the prearranged actions and 
Community Trigger Action Plan and delegates authority to the Head of 
Streetscene to implement this. 

 The Board agrees not to lock the car park at night. 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
 
 

The Beach Road Car Park (BRCP) is on the south side of Marine Parade 
East. It consists of 182 spaces and is owned by Gosport Borough Council 
(GBC). It has existed in various forms since the middle of the last century. 
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/beachroadcarpark 
 
Throughout the past two decades BRCP has mainly been open 24/7. It 
was locked at night due to Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) complaints for an 
unconfirmed period until 2014. It was again locked from 3rd July 2019 until 
work started on the construction of speed humps in August 2019. Speed 
humps were primarily installed in the car park to slow traffic in response to 
the opening of the children’s Splashpark. 
 
It then remained open until it was closed in Spring 2020 along with other 
car parks in the Borough for six weeks due to the Covid pandemic. 
Following the re-opening on the lifting of restrictions in early Summer 2020 
it has remained open 24/7.  
 
BRCP is covered by the Leisure Permit Scheme, allowing unlimited use of 
the car park by some 684 (as of 22/09/21) permit holders. It is a popular 
place for motorists to park in the evenings to view the sea and for some to 
consume food bought at local businesses. There is a likelihood its use will 
increase with the introduction of the imminent parking charges along 
Marine Parade East and West. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/beachroadcarpark


 
1.5 
 
 
 
1.6 
 
 
 
 
 
1.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.9 

 
Since  re-opening, complaints of  ASB from some of the residents who live 
opposite on Marine Parade East have continued and a petition has been 
signed by 119 residents requesting that the car park is closed at night. 
 
GBC was already pursuing a range of actions for the car park to mitigate 
ASB and concluded it was not appropriate to lock the car park at night. 
This led to the activation of a Community Trigger, received by Community 
Safety on 8 December 2020, which is an ASB Case Review provided for by 
the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.  
 
A Community Trigger gives victims of persistent ASB reported to any of the 
main responsible agencies (such as the council, local health team, police 
or housing provider) the right to request a multi-agency case review of their 
case where a certain locally defined threshold is met. 

The responsible agencies then have a duty to undertake a case review  

An ASB Case Review meeting was held on 17 December 2020 and 
chaired by the Head of Corporate Policy and Community Safety. A 
Community Trigger Action Plan to mitigate ASB was produced. In 
accordance with the process, the complainants were given the opportunity 
to comment on the determination of the Community Trigger panel and 
successfully appealed for a reconvened ASB Case Review which was held 
on 22nd June 2021. The minutes of this meeting are produced as 
Confidential Appendix A to this report, as is an updated Action Plan at 
Appendix B. 

Since activating this process the residents have named their group The 
Anti-Social Behaviour Victims Action Group- Beach Road Car Park (AVAG-
BRCP). 
 

2.0 Reported ASB 
 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Between 2nd December 2020 and 1st September 2021 there were 104 
“101” calls and reports made to Hampshire Police. An abridged summary 
of these calls is produced at Appendix C 
.  
Most complaints involve excessive noise being made by exhausts, music 
or shouting by occupants of cars in the car park. There are occasional 
reports of drunkenness, littering, headlights shining into home windows, 
wheel spinning and drivers performing “doughnuts” where the car spins the 
rear wheels and pivots around the front wheels. High speed driving and 
beeping of horns on Marine Parade East is often reported but is outside of 
Gosport Borough Council’s jurisdiction. Drug dealing has been alleged. 
There is also two complaints of criminal damage to a house window from 
air pellets however CCTV was reviewed and there is no indication that this 
was linked to the car park. 
 

Page 28



 
2.3 

Video evidence has been submitted by the  AVAG-BRCP and a 
spreadsheet last updated on 9th August 2021, including subsequent 
reviews of the CCTV is produced by Community Safety at Appendix D. 
 
An abridged email sent for the attention of the Board from the AVAG-BRCP 
was sent to the Head of Streetscene on 30th August and this appears at 
Appendix E. 
 

3.0 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Evidenced ASB 
 
The Panel of the original Community Trigger noted the immediate nature of 
the ASB incidents meant that evidence available to agencies was primarily 
through 101 reports. The Panel felt it was important to enhance the 
Partnership’s evidence base to allow a full understanding of the ASB to 
enable optimum solutions to be developed. The panel agreed additional 
resources should be allocated to pro-active operations by the GBC 
Enforcement Team to obtain an extensive picture and understanding of the 
issues. These were primarily delivered through pro-active operations and 
improvements in CCTV coverage and  reflected in the Action Plan. 
 
From the video evidence supplied by residents there is apparent noise 
annoyance taking place in the form of revving of engines, shouting, playing 
of stereos and beeping of horns, but the actual extent of it is debatable as 
the true volume cannot be established from the video recordings. A large 
proportion of the footage shows the beeping of horns and loud engine 
noise coming from traffic on the road itself.  
 
There is one occasion where a car is filmed doing “doughnuts” in the car 
park to the appreciation of onlookers. This is clearly serious and also an 
offence against the Road Traffic Act which the police could act on. 
 
The head of Environmental Health has stated that the video evidence is not 
representative of a statutory noise assessment as it is not recorded from 
the room most residents would be in the relevant time. 
 
It is relevant to note that Marine Parade East, whilst clearly not the 
responsibility of GBC, is often complained about as being a road where 
vehicles drive at high speeds and beep their horns adjacent to the car park. 
This matter has been considered by agencies and historical (2017) speed 
data has been shared by the police. It is likely present data would be very 
similar. It shows good compliance of the 30mph speed limit at all times 
other than the four hours from 2200 when 15% of the traffic is in excess of 
38mph, and this increases as it gets later. Accounts from residents suggest 
occasionally extremely high speeds are achieved. The road is not a 
collision hotspot with only one speed related injury collision in the past five 
years. There have been no injury collisions in the past two years but clearly 
the potential of a high speed loss of control exists. Based on this data the 
police would not specifically target it. Advice from a police Traffic 
Management Officer is that any activated speed limit signs are likely to be 
ignored. 

Page 29



3.6  
In response to residents’ concerns, six pro-active operations were 
conducted between around 1900-2330 by the GBC Enforcement Team in 
good weather, times when according to reports ASB would be expected. 
These were conducted mainly, but not entirely, using un-marked vehicles 
so that covert observations could be made. No ASB was detected. One 
incident of fast driving into the car park directly to a parking space, and one 
incident of youths talking just across the road from the residential premises 
were identified. The car park was generally busy with people parking up 
overlooking the sea. 
 

4.0 
 
4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

On-going/completed actions to mitigate ASB 
 
As a response to the Community Trigger Action Plan the following actions 
have been completed: 
 
The  uniformed operations referred to in 3.6 were conducted by the GBC 
Enforcement Team on 21st October 2020, 27th November 2020, 14th 
August 2021 and 15th August 2021. The cost was approximately £250 per 
operation. Many drivers were spoken to and leaflets were distributed. 
These were well received in general. Covert operations were conducted on 
6th and 7th January 2021 and no ASB was identified. Signs (A4 copies of 
the leaflets) were posted in the car park prior to the operations. 
 
The Enforcement Officers have the power to prosecute drivers making 
excess noise under s 63 of the Council’s 2020 Parking Order. However, it 
would require evidence that there is a “disturbance or annoyance” to users 
or residents which would be difficult to obtain as conversations with the 
residents reveal they are unlikely to be willing court witnesses. 
Furthermore, a public-interest threshold needs to be met to justify a 
prosecution.  
 
It is felt that these operations are valuable for monitoring the situation.   So 
far the reported levels of ASB have not been witnessed by Council 
Officers. It is likely that these operations would be effective in curbing the 
behaviour of those spoken to.  
 
Speed humps were initially placed in the car park primarily to slow traffic 
for the opening of the children’s Splashpark. With the addition of three 
raised flower beds, cars are almost completely prevented from driving at 
high speed in the car park.   
 
Environmental Health has offered to install noise monitoring equipment in 
residents’ homes to accurately assess the volume of noise they are 
reporting, in an attempt to evaluate whether there is Statutory Noise 
Nuisance as recommended by the Designing Out Crime Report (see para 
4.1.5). It was explained that the equipment is the size of a briefcase and 
only records sound when a button is pressed so is not intrusive. Residents 
despite being asked to reconsider this have declined all offers.  
 

Page 30



 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
4.13 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 
4.15 
 
 

 
Operation Momentum has been launched by Gosport Police with the 
assistance of the GBC Enforcement Team, and is a response to anti-social 
behaviour in all of Gosport’s car parks. The owners of offending vehicles 
are traced using police databases and are written to by the GBC 
Enforcement Manager. As of 13th September 2021 23 keepers have been 
written to, and no re-offending by those individuals has been reported. 
 
The car park was identified as a Hotspot by the Partnership Action Group, 
thereby facilitating the coordination of multi-agency working and resource 
allocation. This includes additional police patrols when resources allow. 
 
24/7 car park charging has been considered and is not thought a 
proportionate solution at this stage. It would deter young people parking up 
at night if it could be enforced. However, the Enforcement Team are not 
contracted to work at night, and to do so would not be an efficient use of 
their time. 24/7 charging could be enforced by ANPR directed barriers, 
linked to new parking meters, as they have at Fareham for instance. The 
system would likely design out most anti-social behaviour as the offenders 
are thought unlikely to want to pay for parking.  
 
A preliminary estimation of the cost is around £70K as it requires purchase 
of new meters which link to the ANPR system. It would also require 
contracting a further Parking Solution Provider. This type of ANPR simply 
reads number plates for parking purposes and is not linked to a database 
so could not be used to identify offenders.  The Parking Order would need 
to be varied or re-written.  
 
The biggest hurdle would be that the system would require 24/7 monitoring 
to allow the egress of people who have lost tickets or whose number plates 
have not been read properly (approximately 8% of all reads).  
 
If implemented this would be the first car park in Gosport to charge 24/7 
and the implications of this precedent would need to be fully considered.  
 
Permanently raising the barrier at night and leaving the ANPR cameras to 
police parking payments is not possible as they are not type approved for 
Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE); Penalty Charge Notices (PCN) cannot be 
issued on information from ANPR systems. 
 
Having a separate one-way exit would not be compatible with the planned 
motorhome bays near the present entrance. 
 
Independent of the Council, a Designing Out Crime report was 
commissioned by the police (Appendix F). Recommendations from this 
are included in the Action Plan. 
 

5.0 
 
5.1 

Planned actions to mitigate ASB 
 
Improved lighting is planned for BRCP. This would cost in the region of 

Page 31



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 

£10-£15,000. Lighting could be vastly improved as the car park is generally 
dark which prevents cars from being easily identified. It is planned to build 
one additional raised bed protruding from the grass area at the western 
end of the car park and then to construct lighting columns on each of the 
four kerbed areas, all facing across the car park towards the sea. Planning 
permission would be required. The GBC Project Officer has been tasked 
with completing this project.  
 
Improved CCTV is planned for BRCP. It has been costed at approximately 
£12,000 and will enhance the current provision at the Memorial Gardens. 
Two fixed cameras were placed on the Coastwatch hut and provided better 
coverage of the car park but they were vandalised beyond repair in early 
July 2021. The intention is to place cameras on both of the two central light 
columns planned for the car park, including the use of Number Plate 
Recognition (NPR) and signing will be placed to advertise this. NPR 
specifically films car registration plates but is does not digitally read them 
as a far more expensive ANPR system would. To be able to assign 
registrations to offending vehicles would assist in legal enforcement. 
 
An extensive hedge, as a more cost-effective alternative to a bank, is 
planned for planting along the grassed area adjacent, and parallel, to 
Marine Parade East. The cost of installation is approximately £1,500 and 
annual maintenance will be approximately £400. Residents have 
complained about headlamps shining into the rooms from cars parked 
along the row of bays adjacent to Marine Parade East. Approximately 
100m of hedging would prevent this. To be effective it would need to be 
around 1.5m high and this may face opposition from opposite (ground 
floor) residents who could lose their sea view. It was also mentioned in the 
reconvened Case Review that this would not solve the problem for first and 
second floor residents if cars are parked on the upwards facing slope. 
Completion is planned for the end of November 2021. 
 
The above planned actions pre-date the Community Trigger and were all 
delayed due to that process. They have all been incorporated in the Action 
Plan. 
 

6.0 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.1 
 
 
6.1.2 
 
 

Implications to the Council of locking the car park at night 
 
In response to the concerns raised and the Community Trigger process, 
closure of the car park has been considered. However this is not 
recommended for a number of reasons, all of which the Designing Out 
Crime report lists under Recommendation 4, as consequences of closing 
the car park: 
 
There would be an increased risk of confrontation to staff closing the car 
park. 
 
The current 24/7 operating model of the car park requires accessibility to 
those who wish to lawfully and respectfully use it. 
 

Page 32



 
6.1.3 
 
 
 
6.1.4 
 
 
 
6.1.5 

From the experience of GBC staff from the night time closure prior to 2014, 
it is believed the problem would be displaced to other car parks, mainly 
Marine Parade and Elmore just along the road. 
 
The cost of doing this would be approximately £34,000 per year (£47 min 
callout fee, twice per day x 365 days). The cost in staff-hours would be 
similar if Enforcement Officers were tasked with this. 
 
It is believed the car park should be accessible to those who wish to 
lawfully and respectfully use it.  
 

7.0 Risk Assessment 
 

 
7.1 

 
There is a risk that the implementation of the Action Plan will not fully 
mitigate the ASB and that further action will be required, although this 
should be part of a review process. This includes the low level risk of injury 
to perpetrators or bystanders from dangerous driving. 
 

8.0 
 
 

Conclusion 

 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
8.3 

 
All recommendations of the Action Plan, including those prearranged 
before the Trigger process have either been actioned or are being planned. 
It is believed these would be proportionate and effective in mitigating ASB 
in the car park.  
 
It is believed the consequences of locking the car park at night would be 
unjustifiable and financially disproportionate. 
 
It is therefore recommended that a strategic decision is made not to lock 
the car park at night, either as an interim measure or long-term.  
 

 

Financial Services comments:  
All costs associated with the implementation of 
the Action Plan have been previously mentioned 
and are budgeted for, other than the completion 
of further enforcement operations. The provision 
of a budget for these is presently being 
considered. 
 
The cost for locking the car park has been 
previously mentioned and is not budgeted for. 
 
Additionally, there would be a likely reduction in 
car park revenue if the car park was locked at 
night as there are almost 700 Leisure Permit 

Page 33



holders, each paying £85 per year. It is unknown 
how many would surrender their permit if they 
are unable to use BRCP within this scheme. 
 

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report 

Equality and Diversity: Assessment attached 

Climate Change implications: Assessment attached 

Crime and Disorder: Covered in the report 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

 

Corporate Plan:  

Risk Assessment: Covered in the report 

Background Papers:  

Appendices: A: Minutes of Reconvened Case Review 
(Confidential) 
B: Original and Updated Action Plans 
C: Summary of 101 calls 
D: Summary and review of video evidence 
E: email deputation on behalf of AVAG-BRCP 
F: Designing Out Crime Report 
 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Wayne Voller, Enforcement Manager 

 

 

Page 34



 

Community Board 03/11/2021- Appendices 

 

Appendix A -Confidential 

Minutes of Reconvened Case Review: 

That in relation to this document, the public should be excluded from the 
meeting, as it is likely, in view of the nature  of the proceedings, that if members of 
the public were present during this item there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information within Paragraph 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972, and further that in all circumstances of the cases, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



Appendix B 

Original Action Plan January 2021: 

 

 
 

 
 

Action By whom/by 
organisation 

Timescale Comments  

Additional operations 
by Streetscene to 
gather intelligence, 
liaise with drivers, 
educate and enforce 
parking orders as 
necessary. 

Wayne Voller, 
Gosport Borough 
Council  
 

January 2021- 
March 2021 

Will need to take into 
account COVID19 
requirements and 
impacts 

Additional operations 
by Environmental 
Health through 
proactive visits to 
witness any statutory 
noise nuisance. 

Ian Rickman, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

January 2021- 
March 2021 

Will need to take into 
account COVID19 
requirements and 
impacts 

Consider improved  
lighting proposal for 
car park 

Wayne Voller, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

June 2021-
October 2021 

Operations and CCTV 
evidence base to 
inform considerations.  

Review existing CCTV 
Camera to improve its 
effectiveness 
responses  

Julie Petty, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

January 2021  

Consider additional 
CCTV provision 

Julie Petty, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

January 2021  

Review Designing Out 
Crime Report to 
identify and further 
necessary actions 

Inspector Matt 
Wake, Hampshire 
Police  

January 2021  

Consider possible 
introduction of ANPR 
system with 24/7 
operation 

Stevyn Ricketts, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

June 2021-
October 2021 

Operations and CCTV 
evidence base to 
inform considerations.  

 

Please note that dates in this action plan are indicative however any changes will be communicated to the 
residents association accordingly 
 

 

 

 

Page 36



 

Updated Action Plan June 2021: 

  

Action By whom/by 
organisation 

Timescale Comments  

Additional operations 
by Streetscene to 
gather intelligence, 
liaise with drivers, 
educate and enforce 
parking orders as 
necessary. 

Wayne Voller, 
Gosport Borough 
Council  
 

July 2021-August 
2021 

Timescale amended 
to allow operations 
post covid. 

Additional operations 
by Environmental 
Health through 
proactive visits to 
witness any statutory 
noise nuisance. 

Ian Rickman, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

January 2021- 
March 2021 

Timescale amended 
to allow operations 
post covid. 

Consider improved  
lighting proposal for 
car park 

Wayne Voller, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

June 2021-
October 2021 

Plans being drawn up 
which will be subject 
to Planning and Board 
Approval   

Review existing CCTV 
Camera to improve its 
effectiveness 
responses  

Julie Petty, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

January 2021 Complete   

Consider additional 
CCTV provision 
 

Julie Petty, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

January 2021 Complete - new 
cameras installed 

Review Designing Out 
Crime Report to 
identify and further 
necessary actions 

Inspector Matt 
Wake, Hampshire 
Police 

January 2021 Complete 

Consider possible 
introduction of ANPR 
system with 24/7 
operation 

Stevyn Ricketts, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

June 2021-
October 2021 

Operations and CCTV 
evidence base to 
inform considerations. 

Additional Actions 

Review latest CCTV 
provision to ensure 
maximum 
coverage/optimum 
solution 
 

Julie Petty, 
Gosport Borough 
Council in 
consultation with 
CCTV  

August 2021  

Page 37



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
1
 Also inform the Anti-Social Behaviour Victims Action Group – Beach Road Car Park of the Council’s 

decision making process which will be followed.  

Additional Actions 

Consider if a small 
bank could reduce 
headlight glare and 
prevent vehicles 
driving over the grass 
verge to enter/exit car 
park. 

Stevyn Ricketts, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

October 2021  
 

Consider if the car 
park should be closed 
at night. 1 

Stevyn Ricketts, 
Gosport Borough 
Council 

October 2021  

 

Please note that dates in this action plan are indicative however any changes will be communicated to the 
Community Trigger Activators accordingly 

 

Page 38



Appendix C 

 

Summary of Beach Road Car Park 101 reports  
December 2020 – October 2021 

 

December 2020 
9  reports 20:15 – 23:30 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 16 
Non-specific noise– 1, Music – 8, Horns – 2, Revving – 2, Engine running/idling – 3 

Vehicle anti-social behaviour: 1 
Wheelies/wheel spins – 1 

Anti-social behaviour: 1 
Headlights/lights – 1 

Other: 1 
Covid breach – 1 

 

January 2021 
8 reports 18:50 – 01:00 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 13 
Music – 6, Horns – 1, Revving – 2, Engine running/idling – 2, Modified exhaust – 2 

Vehicle anti-social behaviour: 1 
Wheelies/wheel spins – 1 

Other: 3 
Covid breach – 2, Firearms incident – 1 

  

February 2021 
0 reports 

 

March 2021 
6 reports 20:10 – 23:00 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 7 
Non-specific noise– 1, Music – 5, Revving – 1 

Vehicle anti-social behaviour: 1 
Excessive acceleration – 1 

Anti-social behaviour: 1 
Under influence of alcohol or drugs – 1 

Other: 1 
Covid breach – 1 

 

April 2021 
15 reports 15:40 – 01:30 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 26 

Page 39



Music – 8, Horns – 3, Revving – 6, Engine running/idling – 1, Modified exhaust – 4, Raised 
voices/shouting – 4 

Vehicle anti-social behaviour: 1 
Speeding – 1 

Anti-social behaviour: 7 
Headlights/lights – 3, Non-specific ASB – 2, Litter – 2 

Other: 2 
People congregating – 1, No behaviour listed – 1 

 
 

May 2021 
14 reports 20:00 – 01:10 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 15 
Music – 11, Horns – 3, Raised voices/shouting – 1 

Anti-social behaviour: 2 
Headlights/lights – 1, Non-specific ASB – 1 

 

June 2021 
26 reports 16:00 – 04:20 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 40 
Non-specific noise– 2, Music – 9, Horns – 5, Revving – 11, Engine running/idling – 1, Modified 
exhaust – 8, Raised voices/shouting – 4 

Vehicle anti-social behaviour: 14 
Wheelies/wheel spins – 2, Speeding – 4, Doughnuts – 6, Excessive acceleration – 1, Non-specific 
vehicle nuisance – 1 

Anti-social behaviour: 6 
Headlights/lights – 3, Non-specific ASB – 3 

Other: 1 
People congregating – 1 

 

July 2021 
18 reports 18:00 – 02:00 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 27 
Non-specific noise– 1, Music – 4, Horns – 8, Revving – 8, Modified exhaust – 2, Raised 
voices/shouting – 4 

Vehicle anti-social behaviour: 3 
Speeding – 2, Excessive acceleration – 1 

Anti-social behaviour:  4 
Non-specific ASB – 1, Fireworks – 2, Criminal damage – 1 

Other: 2 
People congregating – 2 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

Other: 2 
People congregating – 2 

 

August 2021 
8 reports 22:20 – 23:30 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 12 
Music – 3, Horns – 3, Revving – 2, Modified exhaust – 1, Raised voices/shouting – 3 

Vehicle anti-social behaviour: 3 
Speeding – 2, Excessive acceleration – 1 

 

September 2021 
10 reports 20:30 – 02:00 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 15 
Non-specific noise– 1, Music – 3, Horns – 2, Revving – 4, Modified exhaust – 2, Raised 
voices/shouting – 3 

Vehicle anti-social behaviour: 2 
Speeding – 2 

Anti-social behaviour: 3 
Under influence of alcohol or drugs – 1, Non-specific ASB – 1, Urinating – 1 

Other: 1 
People congregating – 1 

 

October 2021 (up until 18/10/2021) 
15 reports 20:30 – 04:00 hours 

Content of the 101 reports by theme*: 

Noise: 25 
Non-specific noise– 1, Music – 9, Horns – 6, Revving – 4, Engine running/idling – 1, Raised 
voices/shouting – 4 

Vehicle anti-social behaviour: 6 
Wheelies/wheel spins – 1 , Speeding – 4, Doughnuts – 1 

Anti-social behaviour: 1 
Headlights/lights – 1 

Other: 3 
People congregating – 2, No behaviour listed – 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



Appendix D 

Review of Video Evidence produced by Community Safety: 

 

   Assessment of CCTV evidence by 
Community Safety 

Summary of original 
report 

V1 10/06/2021 21:20 -
21:21 

Vehicle popping when leaving the car 
park 

Two 101s received 
(20:00 and 21:00) 
reporting revving 
engines, back firing 

V2 11/06/2021 23:02 - 
23:03 

Vehicle wheel spinning and 
doughnutting 

Two 101s received 
(16:17 and 22:55 - 
00:05) reporting vehicle 
ASB, screaming, 
shouting, doughnuts 
and wheel spinning 

V3 29/06/2021 21:18 - 
21:19 

Vehicle heard popping (could not see 
vehicle on footage) 

Two 101s received 29-
30/06/21 (time 
unknown and 21:45) 
reporting popping, 
revving engines, 
acceleration, loud music 

V4 29/06/2021 23:26 - 
23:27 

Vehicle leaving the car park 

V5 29/06/2021 23:31 - 
23:32 

Individuals in and around a car parked 
facing towards properties 

V6 29/06/2021 23:33 - 
23:34 

Individuals in and around a car parked 
facing towards properties 

V7 29/06/2021 23:35 Individuals get into cars parks facing 
towards properties and turn headlights 
on 

V8 29/06/2021 23:36 Cars driving around the outskirts of the 
car park at speed before exiting 

V9 29/06/2021 23:36 - 
23:37 

Cars accelerating and popping when 
exiting car park 

V10 29/06/2021 23:37 Possible shouting or music and beeping 
when leaving the car park and 
travelling along Marine Parade 

V11 29/06/2021 23:38 One car appears to be parking to the 
left off the screen/one car parked 
facing towards the sea 

V12 29/06/2021 23:47 Noisy vehicle speeding along Marine 
Parade and into the car park 

V13 29/06/2021 23:48 Noisy vehicle driving  slowly in the car 
park 

V14 29/06/2021 23:48 Vehicle noise heard but not seen on 
camera 

V15 30/06/2021 00:00 - 
00:01 

Vehicle beeping and car revving as 
leaving car park 

V16 30/06/2021 00:01 - 
00:02 

Vehicle driving at speed along Marine 
Parade 

V17 30/06/2021 00:14 Noisy vehicle driving around the 

Page 42



outskirts of the car park before leaving 

V18 30/06/2021 00:14 - 
00:15 

Vehicle accelerating out of car park out 
of view of the camera but still heard 

V19 01/07/2021 22:47 - 
23:12 

Noisy vehicle along Marine Parade, 
beeping and shouting (video clip is 2 
mins 20 seconds) 

Two 101s received 
(23:00 and 23:30) 
reporting beeping, loud 
music, screaming, 
shouting, revving, heard 
what was suspected to 
be a female voice shout 
'peado' 

V20 01/07/2021 23:20 - 
23:29 

Someone shouts something at the 
beginning of the clip but cannot make 
out what is said. 
Continual beeping and someone heard 
shouting 'shut up' or 'f*** off' (video 
clip is 1 min 39 seconds) 

V21 02/07/2021 22:14 - 
23:30 

Beeping, noisy vehicle along Marine 
Park and noisy vehicle leaving the car 
park 

One 101 received 
(22:00) reporting 
beeping, screaming and 
shouting 

V22 06/07/2021 22:57 - 
23:00 

Windy night and the footage is jumpy, 
it appears a car is driving around the 
car park no noise heard 

One 101 received 
(22:55) reporting cars 
racing around the car 
park and up and down V23 06/07/2021 23:05 -

23:32 
Noisy vehicle heard and seen however 
it is a windy night and the footage 
keeps jumping.  Video starts at 23:32 
and jumps back to 23:05 

V24 13/07/2021 22:49 - 
22:50 

Beeping and acceleration out of car 
park onto Marine Parade 

Three 101s received 
(22:40, 22:49 and 
23:22) reporting 
fireworks or bangers 
(later determined the 
fireworks were 
arranged by a parent for 
after prom), beeping, 
revving, popping 

V25 13/07/2021 23:22 - 
23:49 

Noisy vehicles along Marine Parade 
and in car park (video is 2 mins 54 
seconds) 

V26 14/07/2021 23:20 - 
23:48 

Beeping and noisy vehicle in the car 
park (video is 1 min 2 seconds) 

Two 101s received 
(23:20 and 23:30) 
reporting motorbike 
noise, excessive revving 
and loud exhaust 

V27 24/07/2021 
25/07/2021 

23:12 - 
23:28 
01:09 

Acceleration and possible talking 
Beeping, music, revving and popping 
(video is 1 min 58 seconds) 

Two 101s received 
(23:05 and 00:47) 
reporting revving and 
beeping 

V28 25/07/2021 23:04 - 
23:28 

Beeping, possible music or singing and 
vehicles driving around the car park 
(video is 2 mins 8 seconds) 

Two 101s received 
(20:50 and 23:20) 
reporting loud music, 
shouting, singing V29 25/07/2021 23:28 - 

23:49 
Possible music or signing, acceleration 
along Marine Parade (video is 1 min 58 
seconds) 

V30 09/08/2021 23:26 - 
00:06 

Beeping in the car park and when 
travelling along Marine Parade (video 
is 54 seconds) 

One 101 received 
(23:00) reporting 
beeping 

Page 43



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix E 

Email from Chair of LRA for the Community Board 

 

Page 44



From:  

Sent: 30 August 2021 12:32 

To: Ricketts, Stevyn  

Cc: Voller, Wayne  

Subject: RE: Beach Road Car Park 

 

Dear Stevyn 

 

I am writing on behalf of the AVAG-BRCP Action Group in response to your recent request for a 

victims update on the current situation with late night anti-social behaviour at Beach Road car park. 

 

We understand that, as head of Streetscene, you will be reporting to the Community Board 

members for its meeting on 3rd November, when the closure of the car park at night will be debated. 

 

By the time the Board meet it will be almost one year since the Trigger was activated on 29th 

November 2020 with little or no improvement in the overall situation. 

 

The Action Group expressed dissatisfaction that the reconvened Community Trigger Meeting on 22nd 

June was held without key personnel who had been present at the original Trigger Review on 17th 

December 2020. 

 

We understand that, about 10 years ago, a Police Neighbourhood Panel, including PC Mark Adams, 

PCSO Brad Adams, Cllr Chris Carter, various residents and yourself as both head of Streetscene and a 

Special Constable, got a lockable barrier installed at Beach Road car park. Once this was locked at 

night it solved the problem of ASB at the car park at a stroke. 

 

The reopening of Beach Road car park has been an abject disaster with ASB/Crime occurring almost 

every night. 

 

Since 3rd March 2021 the Group know of at least 106 Anti-social behaviour/crime reports being 

lodged on 101 concerning incidents occurring late at night at Beach Road car park. 

 

Page 45



Since the reconvened Trigger Review meeting on 22nd June 2021 the group know of at least 44 

ASB/Crime reports being lodged on 101 concerning incidents occurring late at night at Beach Road 

car park. 

 

Please note only the worst incidents are reported. Many go unreported through sheer exhaustion of 

the reporting process. 

 

One which was reported recently on 19/20 August involved another property on MPE being targeted 

by someone using an air rifle from the car park, causing damage to a living room window. Two 

similar such incidents were reported in January this year. 

 

Another recent 101 report was lodged at 23:40 on Saturday 28th August concerning loud music being 

played in the car park, shouting and car doors slamming from 23:30 onwards.  

(INC-20210829-0649-101-0809240). We would urge you to read the victim’s report if you have not 

already done so. 

 

Since the reconvened Trigger Review Meeting, residents have been providing Carly Perry with Video 

footage, including audio, corroborating many incidents of ASB which have been reported using the 

101 facility. This footage has been shared with members of the Trigger Panel, including Wayne 

Voller. I can let you have copies on a USB stick if that would be of any help.  

 

We believe that these videos clearly demonstrate how unsafe this car cark has become at night 

and that it needs to be closed as a matter of urgency before someone gets hurt. 

 

The group acknowledge that Streetscene Enforcement Officers have been present late at night at 

the car park while the recent Fair was in town. They successfully persuaded drivers to leave the 

scene. Unfortunately, once the Enforcement Officers left, more drivers, intent on trouble, arrived. 

We have also noted that the visits appear to have been short lived, have now ceased and are clearly 

unsustainable long term. 

 

The hours that Streetscene Officers are employed make it impossible for GBC to enforce its own car 

park regulations, particularly late at night when the majority of ASB incidents occur. 

 

Page 46



It has been noted that increased police patrols have been taking place this month, reducing the 

number of 101 reports but not stopping them. We again doubt that these patrols are sustainable 

long term. 

 

We have enclosed a copy of a chart, produced by Stuart York as part of his designing out advice, 

detailing the start and approximate duration of incidents between March and October  2020. Almost 

all incidents occur outside of Enforcement officers normal working hours. 

 

Also please find enclosed a selection of photographs taken in May and June early each morning at 

the areas of the car park where ASB incidents were reported the previous evening. These 

demonstrate the deliberate littering those intent on blighting victims lives leave behind for your 

hardworking Streetscene cleaners to clear up the next day. 

 

GBC Mission Statement empowers the enforcement of issues such as anti-social behaviour, which is 

currently not happening in Lee-on-the-Solent. 

. 

Everyone has a right to feel safe in their homes. Due to the almost nightly ASB in Beach Road car 

park this is currently being denied to those who live opposite the car park on Marine Parade East 

and is clearly unacceptable. 

 

I hope this is of help. Please contact me if you require any further information. 

 

Kind regards 

 

 Chair LRA 

 

 

Page 47



 

 

 

 

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10 

 

From: Ricketts, Stevyn 

Sent: 17 August 2021 12:27 

Page 48

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986
mailto:stevyn.ricketts@gosport.gov.uk


To: Cc: Voller, Wayne 

Subject: RE: Beach Road Car Park 

 

Hi ******** 

  

Whilst the Community Board is on 3rd November myself and Wayne need to have 

the report prepared for circulation on 1st October which is our deadline. Therefore, 

I’m happy for you to supply any information by Friday 3rd September if that assists 

which will then still allow enough time for us to write the report alongside other 

workloads.  

  

With regards to the closure of the car park in my letter I am referring to nightime 

closure only, just for clarity. 

  

Kind Regards 

  

Stevyn 

  

Stevyn Ricketts DMS 

Head of Streetscene and Deputy Emergency Planning Officer 

(District Oil and Chemical Pollution Officer) 

Corporate Fleet Manager 

 

 

Appendix F 

Designing out Crime Report: 

SITE SURVEY 
18th December 2020 
Inspector M. Wake, 

Page 49

mailto:Wayne.Voller@gosport.gov.uk


With reference to my visit on 15th December 2020 and the survey carried out at Beach Road Car 
Park, Marine Parade East, Lee‐on‐the‐Solent. I am now able make the following recommendations 
found in the report below. The recommendations are seen as appropriate in order to address the 
current level of incidents occurring at this site. 
The risk level is based upon information from yourself, my observations and any statistical data 
where available. 
Should you require any further information or have any queries about the content of this report 
please do not hesitate to contact me. 
Yours sincerely, 
Stuart York 
Designing Out Crime Officer 

Page 50



EVA Beach Road Car Park – Marine Parade East

 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 
 

Page 52



 
 
 

Page 53



 
 

Page 54



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 55



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



 
 
 
 

Page 58



 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

1 
 

Gosport Borough Council  

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 

Completion Instructions for IIA Leads:  

Use this IIA during development to initially assess the likely impact, on both customers and staff, of a proposed new policy, 

strategy, function or service or a proposed change to an existing one. This IIA aims to provide an early warning of any potential 

issues that could adversely impact our customers or staff or result in costly errors in terms of financial or reputational management. 

Evaluating the proposed changes against our key considerations regarding equality & diversity and climate change allows us to 

modify or mitigate any adverse impacts before implementation. It also demonstrates transparency in the Council’s decision making. 

It is a working document with named Subject Expert Officers (SEOs) who can support you - as the IIA Lead, through this process. 

Please do ask the SEOs for advice about potential impacts. 

Impacts in the template are marked: +ve (positive) -ve (negative) or neutral. Once completed the IIA must be signed off by your 

Head of Service and a summary copy attached to the Board or Committee report. Officers have a Duty to ensure that 

Councillors/decision makers understand the impact of decisions before those decisions are made. 

 

Policy/Strategy/Function/ Project  New Existing  IIA Lead Contact Details Date 

Board Report- Proposal against Locking 
Beach Road Car Park 

x  Wayne Voller, 
Enforcement 
Manager 

Wayne.voller@gosport.gov.uk 
 

 
30/09/21 
 

 

What is the aim of this policy/strategy/function/project? What will it change ? 

 
Proposal to make a strategic decision on whether to lock the Beach Road Car Park (BRCP) at night, with a recommendation it is 
left open. To authorise the completion of an action plan to mitigate Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB). 
 

P
age 61

mailto:Wayne.voller@gosport.gov.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

2 
 

 
 
 

Has any consultation been undertaken on this proposed change?                                   yes          x no 

If yes, summarise the methods used  and results of the consultation:  
 
 
There has been no specific consultation but the report is a result of a Community Trigger, which is an ASB Case Review legislated 
by the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the following 
three aims: 
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
• advance equal opportunities between people from different groups 
• foster good relations between people from different groups.   

Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy, project or function has or will advance equal opportunities for each 
of the protected groups below. 

Please note: If this proposal means a change in the availability, degree of provision or access to a service, benefit or 
facility for any group of people, then this Equality &Diversity impact assessment must be completed to assess if this 

P
age 62



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

3 
 

proposal could be deemed unlawfully discriminatory.  

SEO for support to complete this section- Mandy Baggaley, CPCS, x5695 mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk 

Protected Characteristic + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Age X   There is a high number of 101 reports alleging ASB in the car 
park which is opposite several apartment blocks on the 
seafront at Lee-on-Solent. Residents wish to have the car park 
locked at night. They have stated in the past that there are a 
large number of elderly residents who have a fear of crime 
due to the ASB. Most of the ASB is noise related but the 
residents have resisted Environmental Health’s attempt to 
accurately assess the noise. Extensive actions have been 
completed/are planned to mitigate ASB which should have a 
positive impact on members of this characteristic who may be 
experiencing increased fear of crime due to ASB. To close the 
car park would deny people the right to lawfully enjoy the car 
park in the evenings, as many do now. This includes people of 
all protected characteristics. 

Disability   x 
Gender reassignment   x 
Marriage and Civil Partnership   x 
Pregnancy    x 
Race (ethnicity,  nationality, colour)   x 
Religion or Belief (and lack of belief)   x 
Sex   x 

Sexual Orientation   x 

The Armed Forces Bill  places a new duty on public bodies to have due regard to ensure those who serve in the Armed Forces, whether 
Regular or Reserve, those who have served in the past, and their families, should face no disadvantage compared to other citizens in the 
provision of public and commercial services. Special consideration is appropriate in some cases, especially for those who have given most 
such as the injured and the bereaved. Please refer to these resources for more information about the needs and characteristics of the armed 
forces community and our commitment to the Covenant.  GBC Covenant Agreement 2020 Local AFC Profile, needs assessment, resources   

Section of the Armed Forces 
Community 

+ ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

   x 
No impact identified specifically for members of the AFC as 
they are represented within the above characteristics. 

     
     

P
age 63

mailto:mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk
file://///knuckles/department/strat_policy/Equalities%20-MB/Equality%20Impact%20Assessments/Integrated%20EIA%202021%20w%20CC/GBC%20Covenant%20Agreement%202020
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/gosportarmedforcescommunity


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

4 
 

Are there any other groups which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) by this item? If yes, identify below: 

     

     

     

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

Enforcement operations Streetscene On-going 

Speed humps SS Complete 

Police involvement- Hotspot Police On-going 

Writing to offenders Police and SS On-going 

Environmental Health assistance EH On-going 

Signage SS Complete, but could be improved 

Improved CCTV Community Safety Planned 

Improved lighting SS Planned (to coincide with above) 

Hedging to prevent headlamp glare SS November 2021 

Designing Out Crime Report Police Complete 

Consideration to locking the car park SS On-going 

Consideration of 24/7 charging SS On-going 

   

   

    

P
age 64



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

5 
 

B. CLIMATE CHANGE & ENVIRONMENT 

Consider how this change will have an impact with regard to 

 Greenhouse gas emissions 

 Ability to adapt to the impacts of climate change 

 Waste Management 

 Air Quality 

 Natural Environment 

SEOs for support to complete this section- Tim Pratt, CPCS, x5573    tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk 

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions from buildings 
Gas or electricity use and provision of 
renewable electricity, by GBC or others 

  x 

LED lighting will have a minor effect on 
energy consumption and will be dealt 
with under a Planning Application 

Emissions from transport 
Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC or others 

  x 

It is thought vehicles unable to use the 
car park at night will be displaced to 
other car parks. 

Emissions from agriculture 
and land use 

Creation or removal of carbon sinks in 
Gosport, and changes to food consumption 

  x  

Embedded emissions 
Emissions from manufacturing goods and 
materials used by GBC or others 

  x  

Climate Change 
Adaptation 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Vulnerability to storms 
Flood prevention and extent to which 
buildings, habitats and species would be 
affected by flooding and high winds 

  x  

P
age 65

mailto:tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

6 
 

Vulnerability to heat waves 

Provision of shading, ventilation and 
insulation in buildings, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
heat 

  x  

Vulnerability to drought 

Water use in buildings, agriculture, and 
industrial processes, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
drought 

  x  

Vulnerability to food 
insecurity 

Opportunity for local food production   x  

Waste Management Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Amount of waste 
generated 

Levels of consumption by GBC, households 
and businesses, and extent to which 
materials used are reusable 

  x  

Proportion of waste 
recycled 

Recyclability of materials used by GBC, 
households and businesses, and provision 
of recycling services 

  x  

Air Quality Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from transport 

Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC and others; impacts on 
congestion and amount of idling of more 
vehicles 

  x  

Emissions of key pollutants 
from industrial processes 

Emissions from chemical processes   x  

Emissions of key pollutants 
from other sources 

Domestic and other fires   x  

Impact of key pollutants 
Rate at which pollutants are absorbed or 
dispersed 

  x  

P
age 66



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

7 
 

Natural Environment Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 
Sustainability of public 
spaces 

Amount of vegetation and maintenance   x  

Biodiversity and quality of 
habitats 

General impacts on habitats and direct 
impacts on species of concern 

  x 
The planting of a 120m hedge may have a 
minor positive impact on biodiversity. 

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

   

   

    

C. IIA SUMMARY 

Have any positive or negative impacts been identified in 
sections A and B? 

 

Subject + ive - ive Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity x  A potential positive impact if mitigating actions to address ASB 
complaints are successful while maintaining the accessibility of 
the car park to all at night. 

B. Climate Change & Environment    

Can any negative impacts be mitigated? 
 

Subject Yes No N/A Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity x   As above, the impact of the mitigating actions should be 
assessed.   

B. Climate Change & Environment     

P
age 67



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB                                                                                                      DRAFT 2                                             26-05-21 

8 
 

Is further assessment in either subject area necessary to conclude this assessment? 

Subject Yes No If yes, timetable for completion 

A. Equality & Diversity  x Recommended mitigating actions are evaluated in future to 
measure impact. 

B. Climate Change &Environment  x Although a Planning Application for improved Lighting will 
follow.  

D. IIA CONCLUSION 

x     This IIA is complete. No further assessment is required if identified actions are undertaken. This summary can be 

included with Board or Committee reports. 

     This IIA identified further assessment should be undertaken in the identified areas before implementation of this 

proposed change. 

Signed by Head of Service: 

Date:30/09/21 

 

P
age 68


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting of the Community Board held on 8 September 2021
	6 Commemorative Bench Seat Policy
	2021-10-05 Commemorative Bench Seat Policy
	2021-10-05 GBC IIA - ED and CCenvironment only - draft 20200526

	7 Beach Road Car Park
	7 Beach Road Car Park  Appendices v5
	7 GBC IIA - Equality and Climate Change BRCP w updates MB10-21


